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30 March 2020 

Katelyn Symington 
Senior Environmental Assessment Officer 
Department of Planning, Industry and Environment 
4 Parramatta Square, 12 Darcy Street 
Parramatta NSW 2124 

Re:  SSD 7733 Penrith Resource Recovery Facility - Response to Matters Raised by Penrith Council 

Dear Katelyn, 

This letter provides a response to the matters raised by Penrith City Council (Council) in their letter dated 
2 March 2020 from (Their Ref: ECM: 9030810) in relation to the subject application.  

The Council raises concerns in relation to contamination assessment and remediation requirements; and 
traffic management and local road conditions.  

The Council concerns (in italics) and responses are provided below. 

1 Contamination assessment and remediation requirements 

Council maintains concerns that the investigations carried out to date are insufficient to establish if the site 
suitable having regard to SEPP 55 and SREP 20 in combination.  

In the absence of a sufficient site investigation, it is also then difficult to ascertain if SREP 20 applies (in terms 
of whether the level of impact is a trigger that would warrant formal development consent for remediation 
works).  

Though additional sampling is proposed through the Remediation Management Plan, this would be carried 
out post-determination. This is not considered appropriate as SREP 20 requires consent to be obtained for any 
remediation works, which means that the identification of required remediation works must be done as part 
of the development application assessment, coupled with a remediation action plan that forms part of the 
formal determination documentation. Essentially the additional sampling should be done as part of the 
current application and not deferred until post determination.  

It is also noted in the Remediation Management Plan, that where soils are above limits, then these soils are 
to be removed or remediated on-site. These works would constitute remediation works, and development 
consent would be required to be obtained as outlined above. It is also noted that this document is not a 
referenced document within either SEPP 55 or the EPA Guidelines. 

If there was a suggestion to condition an ‘unexpected finds’ approach, then all works would need to cease if 
contamination is identified. This cessation would need to be in place until such time as a development 
application for remediation is lodged, assessed, favourably determined and the works subject of that consent 
are undertaken and validated. This requirement would need to be captured in consent conditions if the 
application is determined without the above recommended site investigations being done, and / or inclusion 
of remediation as part of the works seeking development consent.  
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It is however reiterated that the Department is the relevant consent authority, and the Department must be 
be satisfied that the site is suitable or can be made suitable as per SEPP 55 noting the implications of the 
consent requirements contained within SREP 20. 

Response 

Clause 114 of the Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No 2-Hawkesbury-Neapean River (SREP 20) defines 
remediation of contaminated land as (emphasis added): 

Removing soil or other deposits from, or otherwise remediating, contaminated land. For the purposes of 
this definition, contaminated land means land on which hazardous substances occur at concentration 
levels above background levels, where an assessment (carried out in accordance with guidelines 
circulated to councils by the Department) has indicated the substances pose, or are likely to pose, an 
immediate or long-term hazard to human health or to the environment. 

Neither the preliminary contamination assessment (PCA) submitted with the original environmental impact 
statement (EIS) or the remediation management plan submitted with the response to submissions (RTS)  
found it likely that any substance would pose an immediate or long-term hazard to human health or to the 
environment. Therefore, it is considered that SREP 20 does not apply to the current application. 
Notwithstanding, it is acknowledged that, if any remediation works are required in the future, then 
development consent for those works would be required. 

2 Traffic Management and Local Road Conditions 

Council maintains its position that the driveway must be widened to satisfactorily facilitate truck turning 
swept paths clear of parking lanes, and clear of oncoming vehicles in opposing travel lanes. Amended plans 
reflecting this requirement should be submitted that demonstrate compliance with this requirement.  

The application appears to now indicate that no formalised truck parking is line marked to be provided. It 
must be demonstrated that sufficient space on the site is available to accommodate sufficient on-site truck 
parking. It is not sufficient to remove indications of parking without demonstrating that parking is available, 
without reliance on the local road network.  

The primary remaining concern that is yet to be resolved is the Level of Service (LOS) F that has been identified 
in the application for the western leg of the intersection of Peachtree Road with Castlereagh Road. If the 
Department is of a mind to support the application, this support should be predicated on traffic infrastructure 
works that sufficiently resolve queue lengths and time delays as identified in the traffic modelling submitted. 
The RMS commentary will relate to the classified roads under their care and control, whereas Council must 
separately ensure that our local road network is not further compromised or impacted by the proposal on this 
site, in this location.  

The applicant’s response to date is that it is considered accepted practice to only look at overall intersection 
performance (rather than individual legs) in terms of Level of Service. This is not considered to be an adequate 
response and does not resolve or address the concerns raised by Council. It is recommended that the 
Department ensure that the failure of the western leg of the intersection is sufficiently addressed and 
measures included within this application, or as conditions of consent, that ensure that the existing volumes 
/ local road function are not worsened as a result of this intensified development. If such measures are not 
proposed or included, the question of suitability of the site to accommodate this scale and nature of 
development comes into question, being a key consideration within Section 4.15 of the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act, 1979. 

Response 

A memorandum from EMM’s Traffic and Transport Team addressing the adequacy of the driveway width, 
truck parking and intersection performance is attached. 
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Should you have any further queries please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely 

 

John Arnold 
Associate 
jarnold@emmconsulting.com.au 

 

mailto:jarnold@emmconsulting.com.au
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However, to address Council’s concerns, the performance of the western approach of the Castlereagh Road/ 
Peachtree Road intersection, particularly the right turn approach, is presented in Table 2. 

Table 2 SIDRA results (right turn movement from Peachtree Road to Castlereagh Road) 

Intersection 
Peak 

Period 

DOS LOS DEL Q95 

Existing Development Existing Development Existing Development Existing Development 

Castlereagh 
Road/ 

Peachtree 
Road 

(western 
approach) 

AM 0.569 0.546 D D 54.0 44.0 46.7 43.0 

MD 0.441 0.489 B B 24.1 24.4 25.6 29.0 

PM 
(standard 

hours) 
0.742 

0.774 

D 

D 

53.9 

54.2 

71.5 

78.5 

PM 
(additional 

shift) 
0.763 D 53.9 77.6 

It should be noted that with more traffic, SIDRA allocates more time to the phase with the subject movement and 
this reduces the minor road traffic delay. It is also noted with the revised traffic model, that the right turn 
movement from Peachtree Road to Castlereagh Road has a LOS D in its existing configuration. The improvement 
of the SIDRA intersection model results with the new intersection configuration has been attributed to the 
following reasons: 

• adjustment of the intersection layout based on the latest aerial view (eg Eagleview image); 

• adjustment of the phasing based on the TfNSW TCS plan; and 

• application of the maximum cycle time to 120 seconds as required by TfNSW. 

As the development right turn movement from Peachtree Street is LOS D or better for all the traffic peak periods 
considered, no intersection upgrade work is required as a result of the proposed development. 

We trust this letter satisfies Council’s traffic related matters, however, if you have any further questions, please 
contact the undersigned.  

Yours sincerely 

 

Abdullah Uddin 
Associate Traffic Engineer 
auddin@emmconsulting.com.au 
  
























































